
FAIRFIELD CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

FAIRFIELD MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
5350 PLEASANT AVENUE 

FAIRFIELD, OHIO  45014 
 

Monday, September 8, 2014        7:00 PM 
 
 
MAYOR………………………………….STEVE MILLER    COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…CHAD OBERSON 
COUNCILMEMBER 1ST WARD……….ADAM B. JONES    COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…MIKE SNYDER 
COUNCILMEMBER 2ND WARD………MARTY JUDD    COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…BILL WOESTE 
COUNCILMEMBER 3RD WARD………DEBBIE PENNINGTON   CITY MANAGER………………….ARTHUR E. PIZZANO 
COUNCILMEMBER 4TH WARD………TERRY SENGER    CLERK OF COUNCIL…………….ALISHA WILSON 

LAW DIRECTOR………………….JOHN H. CLEMMONS 
 
Guidelines for Citizen Comments: Thank you for your interest and participation in city government.  Fairfield City Council’s Guidelines for 
Citizen Comments describe the rules for addressing City Council. The guidelines are posted in the Council Chambers. 
 
ADA Notice:  The City of Fairfield is pleased to provide accommodations to disabled individuals or groups and encourage full participation in 
city government.  Should special accommodations be required, please contact the Clerk of Council at 867-5383 at least 48 hours in advance of the 
meeting. 

 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Prayer/Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call 
 
4. Agenda Modifications 
 
5. Executive Session Requests 
 
6. Public Hearing(s) 
 
7. Special Presentations and Citizen Comments 
 
8. Mayor/Council Reports 
 
9. Approval of Minutes 
 

a) Regular Meeting Minutes of  August 11, 2014 
 
10. OLD BUSINESS  

 
(A) DEVELOPMENT SERVICES COMMITTEE 

Bill Woeste, Chairman; Adam Jones, Vice Chairman, Mike Snyder, Member 
 
(1)  Resolution approving the Ward Boundary Review Commission report and recommendation to make no 
      changes to the boundaries of the four wards. 
 

• Resolution – Third Reading 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(2) Ordinance to amend Chapters 1133 and 1165 of the Zoning Code of Ordinance No. 166-84, the Codified 

Ordinances of Fairfield, Ohio relative to the definitions and principal permitted and conditional uses in the 
C-3 General Business District, and C-3A, General Business District Modified, Zoning Districts. 

 
• Ordinance – Hold Second Reading for Planning Commission Recommendation 

 
 
 

(B) PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMITTEE         
Marty Judd, Chairman; Chad Oberson, Vice Chairman, Adam Jones, Member 

 
(1) Ordinance to amend sections 921.03, 921.04 and 921.06 and add a new section 921.14 relative to water 

system requirements of Ordinance No. 166-84, the Codified Ordinances of Fairfield, Ohio. 
    



Page 2  
Agenda 

Regular Meeting 
September 8, 2014 

 
• Motion – Amend 
• Ordinance – Third Reading 
• Motion – Adopt 

 
11.  NEW BUSINESS 

 
 (A)  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
  Adam Jones, Chairman; Marty Judd, Vice Chairman, Terry Senger, Member 
 

(1) Simple Motion: Motion to approve liquor permit application in the name of FDAD, LLC, 7105 Dixie 
Highway, Fairfield, OH 45018. (Permit Classes: D5 and D6) 

 
(2) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement for indigent legal representation for 2015 

in the Fairfield Municipal Court with the Butler County Public Defender Commission/Butler County Board 
of Commissioners and declaring an emergency. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
 (B) PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

 Chad Oberson, Chairman; Mike Snyder, Vice Chairman, Bill Woeste, Member 
 

(1) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to execute a Ohio Public Works Commission Issue 1 Grant 
Application and Agreement for the Nilles Road and Gray Road Improvements Project and declaring an 
emergency. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(C) FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE 

Terry Senger, Chairman; Debbie Pennington, Vice Chairman, Chad Oberson, Member 
 

(1) Resolution accepting the amounts and rates as determined by the Budget Commission and Authorizing the 
Necessary Tax Levies and Certifying them to the County Auditor. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Resolution – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(2) Non-Contractual Appropriations - $41,800 for upgrades to Tyler Technologies software; $20,000 for new 

play structure at Point Pleasant Park on Resor Road; $11,500 for parking lot maintenance at Fairfield 
Aquatic Center and Youth Playfields on River Road; $23,000 for Municipal Building Landscaping; $29,314 
for HVAC upgrades at the Lane Library; $29,450 for asphalt repair, sealing and striping at Municipal 
Building/Annex, Justice Center and Lane Library parking lots; $48,620 for Pleasant Avenue Improvements 
– John Gray Road to Augusta Boulevard. 

 
• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
12. Meeting Schedule 

 
Monday, September 22 Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 



Page 3  
Agenda 

Regular Meeting 
September 8, 2014 

 
Tuesday, October 14 Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
Monday, October 27 Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
 

13. Executive Session of Council (if needed) 
 

14. Adjournment 



MINUTES  
REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL  

AUGUST 11, 2014  
 
Call to Order  
Mayor Miller called the Regular Meeting of Council to order at 7:00 pm at the Fairfield Municipal 
Building, 5350 Pleasant Ave. 
 
Prayer/Pledge of Allegiance  
Councilmember Woeste led in prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll Call  
Clerk Wilson called the roll of Council. Present members were Councilmember Adam Jones, 
Councilmember Marty Judd, Councilmember Debbie Pennington, Councilmember Terry Senger, 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, Councilmember Mike Snyder, and Councilmember Bill Woeste. 
 
Agenda Modifications  
 
Executive Session Requests 
Councilmember Judd, seconded by Councilmember Snyder, moved for Executive Session for the purpose 
of discussing pending and imminent litigation. Clerk Wilson took a roll call vote of council. Motion 
carried 7-0. 
 
Public Hearing(s)  
 
Special Presentations and Citizen Comments  
 
Feed Ohio 2014 Proclamation  
Councilmember Mike Snyder presented the Feed Ohio 2014 Proclamation to Jerry Flyr. Mr. Flyr thanked 
the Council and Mayor for their support of the project and encouraged residents to donate food to the 
project to stock local food pantries for citizens in need. 
 
Resident Beverly Young, 5392 Tallawanda, addressed Council regarding children tearing her fence down 
and walking through her yard. She would like the city to look into the issue and see if there is anything 
that can be done to stop it. Chief Dickey assured her that officers regularly patrol the area and Mayor 
Miller stated the City would do all they could to help with the situation. 
 
Mayor/Council Reports  
Councilmember Jones reported that retired Police Lt. James K. Cooley passed away on August 7, at the 
age of 78. He was appointed in 1963 and retired in 1988 with 25 years of service to Fairfield and as a 
much-respected leader of the Police Department. He also reported that Officer John Cresap and Canaan 
completed training and were certified by the State of Ohio Patrol and Drug Detection, and started duty 
as of last Saturday, on the evening shift. Officer John Vinsky and Koda are currently in training in 
Pennsylvania and should be ready for certification tests in about 2 weeks. Chief Dickey also added that 
Officer Cresap and Canaan have been on the streets for two days and have already made three felony 
arrests. 
 
Councilmember Pennington reported that Groovin' on the Green continues through September 4 and 

http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46571
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46572
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46573
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46575
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46577
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46579


Fairfield Aquatic Center will host Movies at the Pool on Saturday, August 16 at 8 PM, with the movie 
Surf's Up. She also reported that the Hero's Ride will be on Saturday, August 23 at Village Green Park, 
with the ride beginning at 1:00 PM. Mayor Miller also commented that it is a very impressive event. 
 
Councilmember Senger reported that the July Income Tax Report shows receipts ahead of projections. 
He thanked Finance Director Mary Hopton and Staff for their hard work. He also reported that the Lima 
Company Memorial will be arriving in Fairfield at Village Green Park on August 21 and open to the public 
through August 24, so residents can view the memorial during the concert and Hero's Ride events over 
that weekend. 
 
Councilmember Oberson reported that the city is stocked in their salt supply and will be ready for any 
snow events that happen in the city. 
 
Councilmember Snyder reported that school begins Tuesday, August 19 and he wished them a great 
new academic year. He also reported on the new Fairfield Options Academy that is housed in the former 
administration building, and is an alternative school option to traditional classes. Councilmember Snyder 
reported that there is a new program at the Lane Library called "Read to a Dog," where students can 
practice their reading skills by reading to a dog in a relaxed environment. 
 
Fairfield Works Presentation - Mayor Miller presented the Fairfield Works comments for employees that 
went above and beyond the call of duty: Golf Shop Cashier Kelly Becker, Police Officer Craig Singleton, 
Maintenance Worker/Laborer Mike Bieker, Police Officer Natalie Cockfield, and all of the Fairfield 
Aquatic Center staff.  
 
Approval of Minutes  
Regular Meeting Minutes of July 14, 2014  

• The Regular Meeting Minutes of July 14, 2014 were approved as written. 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES COMMITTEE 
Bill Woeste, Chairman; Adam Jones, Vice Chairman, Mike Snyder, Member 

 
Resolution approving the Ward Boundary Review Commission report and recommendation to make no 
changes to the boundaries of the four wards.  
 
Councilmember Woeste presented the second reading of this resolution. 
 

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMITTEE 
Marty Judd, Chairman; Chad Oberson, Vice Chairman, Adam Jones, Member 

 
Ordinance to amend sections 921.03, 921.04 and 921.06 and add a new section 921.14 relative to water 
system requirements of Ordinance No. 166-84, the Codified Ordinances of Fairfield, Ohio.  
 
Councilmember Judd presented the second reading of this ordinance. 
 
 

http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46581
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46585
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46585
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46588
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46588


NEW BUSINESS 
 

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
Adam Jones, Chairman; Marty Judd, Vice Chairman, Terry Senger, Member 

 
Simple Motion: Motion to approve liquor permit application in the name of Umiya Food, Inc. 465 Nilles 
Road, Fairfield, OH 45014. (Permit Classes:C1, C2 and D6)  
 
Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Snyder, moved to approve a liquor permit 
application in the name of Umiya Food, Inc. Motion carried 7-0. SIMPLE MOTION NO. 18-14. APPROVED 
7-0. 
 
Simple Motion: Motion to approve liquor permit application in the name of Gilligan Oil Company & Gas 
Pumps, LLC, 7504 Dixie Highway, Fairfield, OH 45014. (Permit Classes:C1 and C2)  
 
Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Snyder, moved to approve a liquor permit 
application in the name of Gilligan Oil Company & Gas Pumps, LLC. Motion carried 7-0. SIMPLE MOTION 
NO. 19-14. APPROVED 7-0. 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES COMMITTEE 
Bill Woeste, Chairman; Adam Jones, Vice Chairman, Mike Snyder, Member 

 
Ordinance to amend Chapters 1133 and 1165 of the Zoning Code of Ordinance No. 166-84, the Codified 
Ordinances of Fairfield, Ohio relative to the definitions and principal permitted and conditional uses in 
the C-3 General Business District, and C-3A, General Business District Modified, Zoning Districts.  
 
Councilmember Bill Woeste, seconded by Councilmember Adam Jones moved to read the following 
ordinance by title only. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Background: Acting City Manager Wendling recommended an ordinance to amend the Zoning Code 
relative to definitions and principle permitted and conditional uses in the C-3 General Business District, 
and C-3A, General Business District Modified, Zoning Districts. There will be a joint public hearing held 
for this ordinance on September 22 at 7:00 PM with Council and the Planning Commission, and more 
information will be presented at that time, as well as an opportunity for Council and citizen input. 
Legislative Action: Councilmember Woeste presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
Chad Oberson, Chairman; Mike Snyder, Vice Chairman, Bill Woeste, Member 

 
Ordinance authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract with Cargill, Incorporated for the 
purchase of road salt and declaring an emergency.  
 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, seconded by Councilmember Bill Woeste moved to read the following 
ordinance by title only. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 

http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46592
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46592
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46593
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46593
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46595
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46595
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46595
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46599
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46599


Background: Acting City Manager Wendling recommended a contract with Cargill, Incorporated for the 
purchase of road salt. Legislative Action: Councilmember Oberson presented the first reading of this 
ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, seconded by Councilmember Mike Snyder moved to suspend the rules 
requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Chad Oberson, 
seconded by Councilmember Terry Senger moved to adopt. Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 76-14. 
APPROVED 7-0. 
 

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMITTEE 
Marty Judd, Chairman; Chad Oberson, Vice Chairman, Adam Jones, Member 

 
Councilmember Marty Judd, seconded by Councilmember Debbie Pennington moved to read the 
following three (3) ordinances by title only. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to execute a Master Services Agreement with Duke Energy 
One for the Wastewater Treatment Plant emergency back-up generator project and declaring an 
emergency.  
 
Background: Acting City Manager Wendling recommended an agreement with Duke Energy One for an 
emergency back-up generator project at Wastewater Treatment Plant. This generator would operate in 
emergency situations when power is lost to prevent sewer back-up in the city. Legislative Action: 
Councilmember Judd presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Marty Judd, seconded by Councilmember Mike Snyder moved to suspend the rules 
requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Marty Judd, 
seconded by Councilmember Adam Jones moved to adopt. Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 77-14. 
APPROVED 7-0. 
 
Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with H & H Structural Contracting, Inc. 
for the construction of a new Biosolids Storage Building #3.  
 
Background: Acting City Manager Wendling recommended an ordinance to authorize a contract with H 
& H Structural Contracting, Inc. for construction of a new Biosolids Storage Building #3. Legislative 
Action: Councilmember Judd presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Marty Judd, seconded by Councilmember Terry Senger moved to suspend the rules 
requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Marty Judd, 
seconded by Councilmember Adam Jones moved to adopt. Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 78-14. 
APPROVED 7-0. 
 
Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Stauffer Site Services LLC for 
phase two (2) of the Shearwater Drive Water Main Improvements and declaring an emergency.  
 
Background: Acting City Manager Wendling recommended an ordinance to authorize a contract with 
Stauffer Site Services, LLC for phase two (2) of the Shearwater Drive Water Main Improvements. 
Legislative Action: Councilmember Judd presented the first reading of this ordinance. 

http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46605
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46605
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46605
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46610
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46610
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46615
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46615


 
Councilmember Marty Judd, seconded by Councilmember Debbie Pennington moved to suspend the 
rules requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Marty Judd, 
seconded by Councilmember Chad Oberson moved to adopt. Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 79-
14. APPROVED 7-0. 
 

FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE 
Terry Senger, Chairman; Debbie Pennington, Vice Chairman, Chad Oberson, Member 

 
Councilmember Terry Senger, seconded by Councilmember Mike Snyder moved to read the following 
four (4) ordinances by title only. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
An ordinance determining to reduce and recertify special assessments levied for the purpose of 
constructing certain improvements and declaring an emergency.  
 
Background: Acting City Manager Wendling recommended an ordinance to reduce and recertify special 
assessments levied for the purpose of constructing certain improvements. Legislative Action: 
Councilmember Senger presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Terry Senger, seconded by Councilmember Adam Jones moved to suspend the rules 
requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Terry Senger, 
seconded by Councilmember Debbie Pennington moved to adopt. Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 
80-14. APPROVED 7-0. 
 
Ordinance levying Sidewalk Assessments for the repair of sidewalks (including aprons) in the City of 
Fairfield, Ohio and declaring an emergency.  
 
Background: Acting City Manager Wendling recommended an ordinance for Sidewalk Assessments for 
the repair of sidewalks and aprons in 2013 that have not yet been paid for. Legislative Action: 
Councilmember Senger presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Terry Senger, seconded by Councilmember Bill Woeste moved to suspend the rules 
requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Terry Senger, 
seconded by Councilmember Chad Oberson moved to adopt. Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 81-
14. APPROVED 7-0. 
 
Contractual Appropriations - $258,600 for the emergency back-up generator project; $207,204 for the 
construction of a new Biosolids Storage Building #3; $94,157 for Phase Two (2) of the Shearwater Drive 
Water Main Improvements.  
 
Background: Acting City Manager Wendling recommended contractual appropriations for the previously 
approved contracts. Legislative Action: Councilmember Senger presented the first reading of this 
ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Terry Senger, seconded by Councilmember Marty Judd moved to suspend the rules 
requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Terry Senger, 

http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46621
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46621
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46626
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46626
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46631
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46631
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46631


seconded by Councilmember Marty Judd moved to adopt. Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 82-14. 
APPROVED 7-0. 
 
Non-Contractual Appropriations - $25,000 for replacement of a failed sanitary sewer service main at 
1017 Hicks Blvd; $13,000 for replacement of Wet Well Level Transmitters, Raw Influent Flow Meters, 
Thickened Sludge Pit Level Transmitter, and Reaeration Tank Level Transmitter; $8,500 for fencing new 
Biosolids Storage Building.  
 
Background: Acting City Manager Wendling recommended non-contractual appropriations for 
replacement of failed sanitary sewer service main, replacement of Wet Well Level Transmitters, Raw 
Influent Flow Meters, Thickened Sludge Pit Level Transmitter and Reaeration Tank Level Transmitter and 
fencing the new Biosolids Storage Building. Legislative Action: Councilmember Senger presented the first 
reading of this ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Terry Senger, seconded by Councilmember Debbie Pennington moved to suspend the 
rules requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Terry Senger, 
seconded by Councilmember Mike Snyder moved to adopt. Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 83-14. 
APPROVED 7-0. 
 
Meeting Schedule  
Clerk Wilson read the following meeting schedule: 
 

• Monday, September 8   Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m.  
• Monday, September 22   Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m.  
• Tuesday, October 14  Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m.  

 
Executive Session of Council (if needed)  
Council adjourned to Executive Session at 7:30 PM. 
 
Adjournment  
The Regular Meeting of Council adjourned at 8:25 PM. 
 
 
ATTEST:  

_____________________________ 
Clerk of Council  
Date Approved__________________ 
 
 
 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Mayor's Approval 

http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46636
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46636
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46636
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46636
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46641
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=267&meta_id=46645
















































ORDINANCE NO.  ____________ 
 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTIONS 921.03, 921.04 AND 921.06 AND 
ADD  A  NEW  SECTION  921.14  RELATIVE  TO  WATER  SYSTEM 
REQUIREMENTS  OF  ORDINANCE  NO.  166‐84,  THE  CODIFIED 
ORDINANCES OF FAIRFIELD, OHIO. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Fairfield, Ohio, that: 

 
Section 1.  Sections 921.03, 921.04  and 921.06  are hereby  amended  and  a new  Section 

921.14 is hereby added relative to water system requirements of Ordinance No. 
166‐84, The Codified Ordinances of Fairfield, Ohio, to read as follows: 

 
    See attached Exhibit “A” which is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 2.  This Ordinance shall take effect at the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
Passed  ______________________ 

 
_____________________________________ 
Mayor’s Approval 

Posted  ______________________ 
 

   

First Reading  ______________________ 
 

Rules Suspended  ______________________

Second Reading  ______________________ 
 

   

Third Reading  ______________________ 
 

   

ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Clerk of Council 

   

 
This is to certify that this Ordinance has been duly published by posting and summary 

publication as provided by Charter. 
___________________________________ 
Clerk of Council 

 
Active Clients\City of Fairfield\Ordinances\2014\Codified Ordinance Chapter 921 ‐ Ord 



EXHIBIT “A” 
 
CHAPTER 921 – WATER 
 
921.03 APPLICATION FOR CONNECTION. 

(a) General Requirements. 
(1) Application for a water service branch and water meter service must be 

made by a licensed person. Application for branch service must be made 
concurrently with request for meter service. A tap fee shall be paid at the 
time of application. 

(2) No water branch service shall be permitted to any property outside the 
City's corporate limits without approval of Council. 

(b) Installation of Service Branch. All service branches shall be installed at the cost of 
the property owner by a licensed person. All water service branches shall be taken directly from 
a public water main. 

(c) Requirements of Service Branches and Meters. The Public Utilities Director shall 
establish minimum size requirements for service branches and meters. 

(d) Water Branches Not to be Laid in Sewer Trench. No water service branch is to be 
laid in the same trench with a sewer line. In extreme cases, shelving will be permitted if the 
shelf is eighteen inches wide and the water service pipe is so staked so as to prevent its slipping 
into the sewer trench. 

(e)  Replacement or Repair of Service Branches. Where a service branch is installed, 
the Water Division shall repair and maintain it or replace it with a branch of the same size from 
the main to and including the curb stop [valve if the valve is outside] WITHIN the right of way 
or to the limits of the right of way if the valve is [inside] OUTSIDE OF the right of way. The 
property owner is responsible for maintaining the BALANCE OF THE service branch [from  the 
edge of the right of way to the ultimate point of use], WITH THE EXCEPTION OF THE WATER 
METER, TO ASSURE A SAFE WATER SUPPLY AND IN A STRUCTURAL CONDITION THAT WILL 
PERMIT WATER SERVICE WITHOUT LEAKAGE.  COMPLETE REPLACEMENT MUST BE MADE 
WHERE IT IS DETERMINED BY THE PUBLIC UTILITY DIRECTOR OR DESIGNEE THAT A LINE IS 
LEAKING OR OTHERWISE DEFECTIVE.  FAILURE BY THE OWNER TO MAKE TIMELY REPAIRS TO 
OR REPLACEMENT OF THE SERVICE LINE WILL RESULT IN THE TERMINATION OR REFUSAL OF 
WATER SERVICE. (Ord. 20-87. Passed 2-23-87.) 

(f) REPLACEMENT OF WATER METER/REPAIR OF ASSOCIATED WATER LINE.   THE 
CITY HAS THE RIGHT TO  REPLACE OR REQUIRE REPLACEMENT OF ANY WATER METER AS 
DEEMED NECESSARY TO PREVENT LEAKS OR OTHERWISE PROTECT THE WATER SUPPLY.  THE 
CITY SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR BREAKAGE OF PIPES OR VALVES OCCURRING DURING 
REPLACEMENT OR INSTALLATION OF METERS WHEN SUCH BREAKAGE IS DUE TO OLD OR 
FAULTY PLUMBING.  THE CITY MAY TERMINATE OR REFUSE WATER SERVICE IF A METER 
CANNOT BE INSTALLED OR REPLACED APPROPRIATELY DUE TO THE CONDITION OF THE 
WATER LINE ADJACENT TO THE METER. 

(f) (g) Expansion and Water Tap Fees. Expansion fees for properties located inside the 
corporate limits of the City are hereby established in accordance with Appendix A which is 



attached to Ordinance 53-91 and incorporated herein as Appendix A. No building permit shall 
be issued until a water expansion fee is paid. Water expansion fees for properties located 
outside the corporate limits of the City shall be one hundred and fifty percent (150%) of the 
amounts stated in Appendix A. A tap fee shall be paid at the time of application by anyone 
tapping into the City's water system. The tap fee is for payment of materials supplied by the 
City for the physical service connection at the public water main. The cost of materials shall be 
1.5 times the City's cost of purchasing the material. (Ord. 52-95. Passed 5-8-95.) 

 
     921.04     LICENSE; BONDING REQUIREMENTS 

(a) License.   Any person, firm or corporation working on any part of the City’s water 
distribution system, including water service lines and water meters, must first obtain a valid 
water service license issued and signed by the Public Utilities Director or his/her designee.  
Application for such license shall be made to the Public [Works] UTILITIES Director, and a 
license fee of thirty dollars ($30.00) shall accompany the application.  The license shall be valid 
within the calendar year that it was issued, and must be renewed cyclical on January 1st with an 
additional fee paid each year.  The license applicant shall be required to prove to the 
satisfaction of the Public Utilities Director and City Manager that he/she possesses the 
qualifications necessary for working on the City’s water distribution system.  The applicant may 
be required to pass a test as to competency under the bylaws and regulations adopted by the 
City of Fairfield.  A license may be revoked by the Public Utilities Director if the licensee violates 
any laws, ordinances, bylaws and regulations governing work on the City water distribution 
system.  (Ord. 128-07.  Passed 10-9-07.) 
 
921.06 PERMITS FOR TEMPORARY WATER USE. 
Where water is required for temporary use, application shall be made to the Water Division for 
a special permit to use water from a fire hydrant or other available source. All arrangements for 
temporary water use shall be approved by the Superintendent. 

(a) Special Meters. 
(1) The Superintendent is authorized to require the use of a special water 

meter to register water consumed for a temporary use. The meter will, in 
such cases, be furnished by the Division [without charge except that] 
WITH a deposit OF $150.00 FOR ¾” OR 1” METERS AND $450.00 FOR 2” 
METERS AND RENTAL FEES OF $75.00 FOR ¾” OR 1” METERS AND 
$150.00 FOR 2” METERS [may be] required. Rates for special meter 
water use shall be a minimum [of ten dollars ($10.00)] BILL [for the first 
3,000 gallons] BASED UPON THE METER SIZE. Water used in excess of 
THE MINIMUM AMOUNT [3,000 gallons] will be charged at the normal 
residential/commercial rate. 

[(b) Charge for Unmetered Water. Unmetered water shall be paid for on the basis 
of meter rates, according to the estimated amount used or to be used. The minimum charge 
shall be fifteen dollars ($15.00). The Superintendent shall be authorized to provide, by rule, 
for the method of fixing charges in the case of particular types of unmetered uses. 
Construction water for use at a building site operating under a valid building permit shall be 
charged at a rate of three times the minimum monthly water bill for the specified meter size 



for each meter in the building. Construction water shall be authorized for three months and 
may be extended by written authorization of the Superintendent.] 

 
[(c)]  (b) Use of Water Without a Permit. No person, firm or corporation shall use or 

make a connection to use water from a fire hydrant or other available source unless a properly 
authorized temporary use permit is issued by the Water Division. The Superintendent is hereby 
authorized to remove and confiscate any hose or connection found attached to a fire hydrant 
or other available source of water for which no temporary use permit has been issued. 
(Ord. 20-87. Passed 2-23-87.) 
 
921.14   TAMPERING WITH WATER DIVISION EQUIPMENT.  

(a) NO PERSON SHALL KNOWINGLY, WITHOUT CONSENT OF THE CITY PUBLIC 
UTILITIES DIRECTOR OR DESIGNEE: 
  (1) INTERFERE WITH, DAMAGE, OR BY-PASS A WATER METER OR 

RELATED ACCESSORY. 
  (2) TURN ON A WATER SERVICE THAT HAS BEEN TURNED OFF AT 

THE CURB STOP OR WITH A LOCK OUT AT THE METER BY THE 
CITY TO DISCONTINUE SERVICE TO THE PREMISES. 

  (3)  CONNECT TO A FIRE HYDRANT FOR PURPOSES OTHER THAN FIRE 
FIGHTING, HYDRANT MAINTENANCE, OR OTHER ACTIVITIES.  

  (4)  OPEN, CLOSE, ADJUST OR INTERFERE WITH A FIRE HYDRANT, 
VALVE, CURB STOP, TANK, METERS, PIPES, MAINS, OR OTHER 
COMPONENTS OF THE WATER SYSTEM OWNED BY THE CITY.  

  (5)  TAP, SEVER, OPEN OR MAKE UNAUTHORIZED CONNECTIONS 
WITH A MAIN OR PIPE USED OR INTENDED FOR THE 
TRANSMISSION OF WATER. 

IN A PROSECUTION UNDER SUBSECTION (1) OR (2) HEREOF, PROOF THAT A METER OR CURB 
STOP HAS BEEN TAMPERED WITH IS PRIMA-FACIE EVIDENCE THAT THE PERSON WHO IS 
OBLIGED TO PAY FOR THE SERVICE RENDERED THROUGH THE METER AT THE TIME THE 
TAMPERING OCCURRED HAS CAUSED THE TAMPERING.  
(Ord. 116-11. Passed 11-14-11). 
 
 
 






















































































































	Regular Agenda for September 8, 2014
	Regular Meeting Minutes August 11, 2014
	Old Business
	Development Services Committee - Ward Boundary Review
	Development Services Committee - Zoning Code Modification - Chapters 1133 and 1165
	Public Utilities Committee - Chapter 921 - Water

	New Business
	Public Safety Committee - FDAD, LLC Liquor Permit Application
	Public Safety Committee - Public Defender Agreement
	Public Works Committee - OPWC Issue 1 Grant for Nilles & Gray Road Improvements
	Finance & Budget Committee - Butler County Budget Commission rates and amounts
	Finance & Budget Committee - Non-contractual appropriations




